
APPROVED MINUTES | PLANNING BOARD MARCH 10, 2025 

TOWN OF APEX  
PLANNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES  

MONDAY, MARCH 10, 2025  
4:30 P.M.  

  
The Apex Planning Board met on Monday, March 10, 2025 at 4:30 PM in the Council 
Chamber at Apex Town Hall, located at 73 Hunter Street in Apex, North Carolina.  
  
This meeting was open to the public. Members of the public were able to attend this meeting 
in-person. The recording of this meeting can be viewed here: 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=MAe6U0gHPyc&t=640s  
  
  
[ATTENDANCE]  
  
Board Members  
Tim Royal, Vice-Chair  
Keith Braswell  
Steven Rhodes  
Sarah Soh  
Alyssa Byrd  
Daniel Khodaparast  
Preston Mitchell  
Jeff Hastings (Wake County Representative)  
Vacant, Apex Historical Society Representative   
  
Absent: Tina Sherman, Chair  
  
Town Staff  
Planning Director Dianne Khin  
Current Planning Manager Amanda Bunce  
Planner II Bruce Venable  
All other staff members will be identified appropriately below  
  
  
[COMMENCEMENT]  
  

Vice-Chair Royal called the meeting to order at 4:30p.m., then asked Member 
Braswell to lead an invocation, and led the Pledge of Allegiance.    
  
 
[ITEMS OF INFORMATION] 
 
 Vice-Chair Royal asked if there were any new items before moving to Public 
Comment. 

Director Khin informed the public of the S-Line Apex Mobility Hub presentation to be 
given at the Town Council Work Session on Tuesday, March 18, at 3:30pm. That meeting will 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=MAe6U0gHPyc&t=640s


APPROVED MINUTES | PLANNING BOARD MARCH 10, 2025 

be held in Town Hall Training Room 3A and livestreamed on the Town’s YouTube channel.  
 
[SLIDE 1] 

  

  
[PUBLIC COMMENT]  
 

Vice-Chair Royal opened the floor for anyone to speak on non-agenda items and 
with no sign-ins the public comment time was closed.  

  
[CONSENT]  
 

Vice-Chair Royal asked for a motion to approve the meeting minutes from the 
February 10, 2025 Planning Board meeting.  
  

A motion was made by Member Soh, second by Member Khodaparast to approve 
the February 10, 2025 minutes.  
  

VOTE: UNANIMOUS (8-0)  
  
  

[NEW BUSINESS]  
  
ITEM NO. 1 – UDO Amendment, East West Partners  

 
Bruce Venable, Planner II, presented amendments to add the projecting sign type to 

the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO). This amendment was requested by East West 
Partners. Staff recommended approval of the proposed amendments. He gave the following 
presentation: 



APPROVED MINUTES | PLANNING BOARD MARCH 10, 2025 

[SLIDE 1] 

 
[SLIDE 2] 

 
[SLIDE 3] 

  



APPROVED MINUTES | PLANNING BOARD MARCH 10, 2025 

[SLIDE 4] 

 
[SLIDE 5] 

 
[SLIDE 6] 

  



APPROVED MINUTES | PLANNING BOARD MARCH 10, 2025 

[SLIDE 7] 

 
[SLIDE 8] 

 
 Member Mitchell asked if the ordinance defines a marquee. He asked if the 
individual bulb could flash or move around the perimeter of the sign like a marquee. 
 Mr. Venable said that marquee is mentioned in the UDO, but this is designed not to 
flash or a distraction and solidly lit internally from the rear. 
 Member Soh asked if there is specific language of limitations of color intensity or 
brightness. 
 Mr. Venable said that it is in the sign section and there are limits on the types of color 
and how bright the signs can be.  
 Member Byrd asked if the standards are different. She said that in summary it says 
currently only permitted in the Small Town Character Overlay District.  
 Mr. Venable said that in the Small Town Character Overlay this sign was approved and 
is part of the UDO. He said that this type of sign is being used in other areas and the signs will 
be different in size.  
 Member Byrd asked if there were 12 tenants then could there be 12 signs.  



APPROVED MINUTES | PLANNING BOARD MARCH 10, 2025 

 Mr. Venable said that he would have to check to see. He said one per tenant could 
mean multiple signs with a multi-use building potentially. He said ideally that these would 
come in for review for guidance and direction. 
 Member Byrd said that overall, they are very attractive. 
 Member Khodaparast asked if East West Partners currently has a project that would 
benefit from this. 
 Mr. Venable said that they are development the Flats at Depot 499, which is a 4-story 
building with multiple tenants and working with them helped making decisions on signage. 
 Member Mitchell said at Sweetwater on the first or second floor of multi-tenants and 
asked if all tenants wanted a sign how would that work. 
 Mr. Venable said that it would be approached like wall signs. He said that the concern 
may be safety to appearance and that may be something to talk about.  
 Member Mitchell asked how the figures were chosen. 
 Mr. Venable said that they looked at multiple jurisdictions and they all varied. He said 
staff based them off of Wilmington, NC because they had good examples of smaller signs.  
 Member Byrd said that she had been in Wilmington lately and that this was more 
palatable.  
 Member Mitchell asked if it was still in the UDO that the building owner would have 
to approve. 
 Mr. Venable said that property owners will have to work with the tenant.  
 Vice-Chair Royal asked if there were any other questions for Mr. Venable and opened 
it up to the Board for discussion. 
 Member Mitchell said that because this is not coming from staff, and it is a private 
application that they should know where signs will go. 
 Member Byrd said that it makes sense for a walkable downtown dense feeling, 
although it can go anywhere in town, where we will see it applied, makes sense.  

  
A motion was made by Member Soh and seconded by Member Mitchell to approve 

the amendment.  
  

VOTE: UNANIMOUS (8-0)  
  

ITEM NO. 2 – UDO Amendments 
 
Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager and Bruce Venable, Planner II, 

presented various amendments to the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO). Staff 
recommended approval of the proposed amendments.  

 



APPROVED MINUTES | PLANNING BOARD MARCH 10, 2025 

[SLIDE 1] 

  
[SLIDE 2] 

  
[SLIDE 3] 

 



APPROVED MINUTES | PLANNING BOARD MARCH 10, 2025 

[SLIDE 4] 

  
[SLIDE 5] 

  
 Member Khodaparast asked if terms limits would be applied retroactively. 
 Ms. Bunce said that you would continue to serve until the term expires but if you have 
already served three consecutive terms you would be termed out.  
 Member Soh asked what was the youth rep selection process. 
 Ms. Bunce said for all board members there is an application process, and the Mayor 
selects, and Council affirms.  
  



APPROVED MINUTES | PLANNING BOARD MARCH 10, 2025 

[SLIDE 6] 

 
[SLIDE 7] 

  
[SLIDE 8] 

  



APPROVED MINUTES | PLANNING BOARD MARCH 10, 2025 

[SLIDE 9] 

 
[SLIDE 10] 

  
[SLIDE 11] 

  



APPROVED MINUTES | PLANNING BOARD MARCH 10, 2025 

[SLIDE 12] 

 
[SLIDE 13] 

  
[SLIDE 14] 

  



APPROVED MINUTES | PLANNING BOARD MARCH 10, 2025 

[SLIDE 15] 

  
[SLIDE 16] 

  
[SLIDE 17] 

  



APPROVED MINUTES | PLANNING BOARD MARCH 10, 2025 

[SLIDE 18] 

 
[SLIDE 19] 

  
[SLIDE 20] 

  



APPROVED MINUTES | PLANNING BOARD MARCH 10, 2025 

[SLIDE 21] 

 
Mr. Venable gave the remaining presentation: 

[SLIDE 22] 

 
[SLIDE 23] 

 



APPROVED MINUTES | PLANNING BOARD MARCH 10, 2025 

[SLIDE 24] 

  
[SLIDE 25] 

  
[SLIDE 26] 

 



APPROVED MINUTES | PLANNING BOARD MARCH 10, 2025 

[SLIDE 27] 

  
 Member Mitchell thanked Mr. Venable for showing the peer communities and their 
standards. 
[SLIDE 28] 

 



APPROVED MINUTES | PLANNING BOARD MARCH 10, 2025 

[SLIDE 29] 

  
 Mr. Venable said that if there were any questions he would be glad to answer. 
 Member Mitchell asked if someone on TRC hold up the project in that meeting. He 
asked for clarification if vertical construction would apply. 
 Mr. Venable said it would not apply. He said that bus stops would be the only vertical 
thing that would be allowed. 
 Member Mitchell asked if there was an infrastructure plan, but there was a long range 
plan or policy that conflicted with the proposed plan, would this allow the plan to bypass an 
adopted plan or policy. 
 Mr. Venable said that other jurisdictions have what’s called a combo submittal where 
the site plan and construction drawing come in at the same time for review. He said that is 
essentially how these projects would be reviewed. Staff would use the UDO and every 
adopted plan in reviewing the project and they will not be able to bypass anything.  

Member Mitchell stated that sometimes the local government laws and policies can 
get in the way of an infrastructure project and that they are suggesting that this not happen, 
and he supports this amendment.  
 Mr. Venable said some communities don’t even require a pre-application meeting for 
these type projects, but the Planning leadership made a good point that designers don’t 
always know what is going on at the project or site when designing. This allows all staff to 
comment on the proposal early in the design process. 

A motion was made by Member Hastings and seconded by Member Soh to 
approve the amendments.  
  

VOTE: UNANIMOUS (8-0)  
  
[ADJOURNMENT]  
  

A motion was made by Member Soh and seconded by Member Mitchell to adjourn 
the Planning Board meeting at 5:08 p.m.   



APPROVED MINUTES | PLANNING BOARD MARCH 10, 2025 

  
VOTE: UNANIMOUS (8-0)   

  
  

Tina Sherman  
Planning Board Chair  

  
 
Jeri Pederson  
Lead Planning Technician   
Submitted for approval by Jeri Pederson and approved on April 14, 2025.  


